# **PROSPECTUS**

# BPH Global Ltd ACN 009 104 330

#### **OFFER**

For the offers of:

- (a) up to 10,000 Shares at an issue price of \$0.0015 (0.15 cents) per Share together with 1 free attaching Option for every 1 Share subscribed for to raise up to \$15 (before expenses) for the purpose of Section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act to remove any trading restrictions on the sale of Shares or Options issued by the Company prior to the Closing Date (Cleansing Offer);
- (b) up to 800,000 Convertible Notes each with a face value of \$1.00 at a subscription price of \$1.00 per Convertible Note to raise up to \$800,000 (**Convertible Note Offer**),

(together the Offers).

## **CLEANSING**

This Prospectus has been prepared primarily for the purposes of section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act to remove any trading restrictions on the sale of certain Shares issued by the Company prior to the Closing Date, including without limitation the Shares or Options issued under the Cleansing Offer.

Please refer to section 4.4 of this Prospectus for further details of the Cleansing Offer.

This Prospectus has also been prepared to remove any sale restrictions that may be attached to, and facilitate future secondary trading of, the underlying Shares and New Options which may be issued on conversion of the Convertible Notes pursuant to ASIC's exemption based relief.

Please refer to section 4.1 of this Prospectus for further details of the Convertible Notes offered under the Convertible Note Offer.

The Offers are made to investors to be identified and invited by the Company only and may not be assigned or transferred to any other party.

#### **UNDERWRITING**

The Offers are not underwritten.

#### IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Prospectus is a transaction specific prospectus for the offer of continuously quoted securities (as defined in the Corporations Act) and has been prepared in accordance with section 713 of the Corporations Act. It does not contain the same level of disclosure as an initial public offering prospectus. In making representations in this Prospectus, regard has been given to the fact that the Company is a disclosing entity for the purposes of the Corporations Act and certain matters may

reasonably be expected to be known to investors and professional advisors to whom potential investors may consult.

This document is important and should be read in its entirety. Please read the instructions in this document and on the relevant accompanying Application Form regarding acceptance of the Offers which will be provided by the Company to invited investors. If after reading this Prospectus you have any questions about the securities being offered under this Prospectus or any other matter, then you should consult your stockbroker, accountant, lawyer or other professional adviser. The Securities offered by this Prospectus should be considered as speculative.

# Contents

| 1.  | Corporate Directory                                          | 1  |
|-----|--------------------------------------------------------------|----|
| 2.  | Timetable                                                    | 2  |
| 3.  | Important Notes                                              | 3  |
| 4.  | Key Details of Offer                                         | 7  |
| 5.  | Purpose and Effect of the Offers and the Placement           | 15 |
| 6.  | Rights and Liabilities attaching to Shares and Offer Options | 20 |
| 7.  | Risk Factors                                                 | 24 |
| 8.  | Additional Information                                       | 30 |
| 9.  | Directors' Authorisation                                     | 40 |
| 10. | Definitions                                                  | 41 |

# 1. Corporate Directory

#### **Directors**

Mr Paul Stephenson, Non-Executive Chairman Mr Huanqing Gu, Non-Executive Director Mr Francesco Cannavo, Executive Director Mr Matthew Leonard, Executive Director Mr Yanhua Huang, Non-Executive Director

## **Legal Advisors to the Company**

Moray & Agnew Lawyers Level 6, 505 Little Collins Street, Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia

## **Company Secretary**

Ms Elizabeth Spooner Ms Belinda Cleminson

## **Registered Address**

Level 5, 126 Phillip Street, Sydney, New South Wales

#### **ASX Code**

BP8

## Auditor\*

HLB Mann Judd Assurance (NSW) Pty Ltd Level 19/207 Kent Street, Sydney NSW 2000

## Share Registry\*

Automic Registry Services Level 5, 126 Phillip Street Sydney NSW 2000, Australia

Lead Manager to the Placement and Convertible Note Offer\*

Sanlam Private Wealth Pty Ltd Level 7, 100 Collins Street Melbourne VIC 3000

<sup>\*</sup>This entity is included for information purposes only. It has not been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus.

# 2. Timetable

| Event                                                                                                          | Date                                           |  |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|--|
| Lodgement of Prospectus with ASIC and ASX and lodgement of Appendix 3B with ASX                                | Thursday, 12 <sup>th</sup> October 2023        |  |
| Opening date of the Cleansing Offer                                                                            | Thursday, 12th October 2023                    |  |
| Issue of:  (a) Shares under the Placement;                                                                     | Thursday, 12th October 2023                    |  |
| (b) Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer                                                         |                                                |  |
| Annual General Meeting of Company                                                                              | Tuesday 21st November 2023 (est.)              |  |
| Issue of:  (a) Options under the Placement; and  (b) Lead Manger Options under the Lead Manager Options Offer. | Thursday 23 <sup>rd</sup> November 2023 (est.) |  |
| Closing date of the Offers                                                                                     | Friday, 8 <sup>th</sup> December 2023          |  |

<sup>\*</sup>The above dates are indicative only and may be subject to change. The Directors reserve the right to vary these dates, including the Offer Closing Date, without prior notice but subject to any applicable requirements of the Corporations Act or the ASX Listing Rules. This may include extending the Offers or accepting late acceptances either in general or in particular cases.

# 3. Important Notes

This Prospectus is dated Thursday, 12<sup>th</sup> October 2023. A copy of this Prospectus was lodged with ASIC on Thursday, 12<sup>th</sup> October 2023. Neither ASIC, ASX nor their respective officers take any responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus or the merits of the investment to which this Prospectus relates. Within seven (7) days of the date of this Prospectus, the Company will make an application to ASX for the Offer Securities offered pursuant to this Prospectus to be admitted for quotation on ASX.

No person is authorised to give information or to make any representation in connection with this Prospectus which is not contained in the Prospectus. Any information or representation not so contained may not be relied on as having been authorised by the Company in connection with this Prospectus.

It is important that investors read this Prospectus carefully and in full and seek professional advice where necessary before deciding to subscribe for Shares in the Company. The Securities the subject of this Prospectus should be considered highly speculative.

Applications for the Offer Securities and the Convertible Notes offered pursuant to this Prospectus can only be made pursuant to the relevant, original Application Form which will be provided by the Company to invited investors.

This Prospectus is a transaction specific prospectus for an offer of continuously quoted securities (as defined in the Corporations Act) and has been prepared in accordance with section 713 of the Corporations Act. It does not contain the same level of disclosure as an initial public offering prospectus. In making representations in this Prospectus regard has been had to the fact that the Company is a disclosing entity for the purposes of the Corporations Act and certain matters may reasonably be expected to be known to investors and professional advisers whom potential investors may consult.

The Prospectus is intended to be read in conjunction with information about the Company which is publicly available and has been notified to ASX. Therefore this Prospectus does not include all information generally required to be included in a document of this type.

The Offers are only available to those who are personally invited to accept the Offers, respectively. Applications for the Offer Securities and Convertible Notes offered pursuant to this Prospectus can only be submitted on the relevant, original Application Form which will be provided by the Company to invited investors.

#### 3.1 Risk Factors

Potential investors should be aware that subscribing for Securities in the Company involves a number of risks. The key risk factors of which investors should be aware are set out in the Section 7 of this Prospectus. These risks together with other general risks applicable to all investments in listed securities not specifically referred to, may affect the value of the Securities in the future. Accordingly, an investment in the Company should be considered highly speculative. Investors should consider consulting their professional advisers before deciding whether to apply for Securities pursuant to this Prospectus.

## 3.2 Forward-Looking Statements

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements which are identified by words such as 'may', 'could', 'believes', 'estimates', 'targets', 'expects', or 'intends' and other similar words that involve risks and uncertainties. These statements are based on an assessment of present economic and operating conditions, and on a number of assumptions regarding future invests and actions that, as at the date of this Prospectus, are expected to take place.

Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other important factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Company, the Directors and management. We cannot and do not give any assurance that the results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus will actually occur

and investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

The Company does not intend to update or revise forward-looking statements, or to publish prospective financial information in the future, regardless of whether new information, future events or any other factors affect the information contained in this Prospectus, except where required by law. These forward-looking statements are subject to various risk factors that could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from the results expressed or anticipated in these statements. These risk factors are set out in section 7.

#### 3.3 Defined terms and abbreviations

Terms and abbreviations used in this Prospectus are defined in section 10 of this Prospectus. All financial amounts shown in this Prospectus are expressed in Australian dollars unless otherwise stated.

#### 3.4 Enquiries

Any questions concerning the Offers should be directed to the Company Secretaries, Ms Elizabeth Spooner and Ms Belinda Cleminson on +61 (2) 8072 1400.

#### 3.5 Investment decisions

The information contained in this Prospectus is not financial product advice and is not intended to be relied on as advice. The Offers contained in this Prospectus do not take into account the investment objectives, financial situation and particular needs of any Applicant. Before deciding to invest in the Company, potential investors should read the entire Prospectus and in particular the risk factors that could affect the future operations and activities of the Company and consult their professional advisers. An investment in the Securities should be considered speculative.

## 3.6 Disclaimer

This Prospectus has been prepared by the Company. No party other than the Company has authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus or takes responsibility for, or makes any statements, representations or undertakings in, this Prospectus.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the Offers which are not contained in this Prospectus. Any information or representation not contained in this Prospectus may not be relied on as having been authorised by the Company in connection with the Offers.

No person named in this Prospectus guarantees the Company's performance or any return on investment made pursuant to this Prospectus. Any references to information on the Company's website are provided for convenience only. No document or other information included on the Company's website is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus.

# 3.7 Publicly Available Information

Information about the Company is publicly available and can be obtained from ASIC and ASX (including ASX's website <a href="www.asx.com.au">www.asx.com.au</a>). The contents of any website or ASIC or ASX filing by the Company are not incorporated into this Prospectus and do not constitute part of the Offers.

## 3.8 Expiry Date

No Securities subject of the Offers may be issued on the basis of this Prospectus later than 13 months after the date of this Prospectus.

#### 3.9 Additional Copies of Prospectus

Additional copies of this Prospectus are available at the registered office of the Company during the Offer Period. The Corporations Act prohibits any person from passing onto another person an Application Form unless it is attached to or accompanied by the complete and unaltered version of this Prospectus.

## 3.10 Electronic Prospectus

A copy of this Prospectus can be downloaded from the ASX website. Any person accessing the electronic version of this Prospectus for the purpose of making an investment in the Company must be an Australian resident and must only access the Prospectus from within Australia.

The Corporations Act prohibits any person from passing onto another person an Application Form unless it is attached to or accompanied by the complete and unaltered version of this Prospectus. Any person may obtain a hard copy of this Prospectus free of charge during the Offer Period by contacting the Company.

#### 3.11 Restriction on Offers

No action has been taken to permit the offer of the Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes under this Prospectus in any jurisdiction other than Australia.

The distribution of this Prospectus in jurisdictions outside Australia may be restricted by law and therefore persons into whose possession this document comes should seek advice on and observe any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with these restrictions constitutes a violation of those laws.

No action has been taken to register or qualify the Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes, or otherwise to permit a public offering of the Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes in any jurisdiction outside Australia and the Offers are not an offer or invitation in any jurisdiction where, or to any person whom, such an offer or invitation would be unlawful.

#### 3.12 Terms of Securities

A summary of the rights attaching to the Offer Securities offered by this Prospectus is set out in section 6. A summary of the terms and conditions attaching to the Convertible Notes is set out in section 4.1. Details of the Offers are set out in section 4 below.

# 3.13 Application Forms

Please read the instructions in this Prospectus and on the relevant accompanying Application Form regarding the acceptance of the Offers. By returning an Application Form or lodging an Application Form with your stockbroker or otherwise arranging for payment for the Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes (as applicable) in accordance with the instructions on the relevant Application Form, you acknowledge that you have received and read this Prospectus, you have acted in accordance with the terms of the relevant offer detailed in this prospectus and you agree to all the terms and conditions as detailed in this Prospectus. Applications for Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes can only be made pursuant to the relevant Application Form provided by the Company to invited investors. The Corporations Act prohibits any person from passing onto another person an Application Form unless it is attached to or accompanied by the complete and unaltered version of this Prospectus.

The relevant Application Form provided by the Company to invited investors contains a declaration that the Applicant has personally received the complete and unaltered Prospectus prior to completing the Application Form.

#### 3.14 Statements of Past Performance

This Prospectus includes information regarding the past performance of the Company. Investors should be aware that past performance should not be relied upon as being indicative of future performance.

## 3.15 Privacy

If you apply for Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes you will provide personal information to the Company and the Share Registry. This enables your Application to be assessed, you to be registered as the holder of Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes, to enter you in the Company's register of members or note holders (as applicable) and to enable the Company to contact you. The Company may from time to time be required to disclose your personal information to the Australian Taxation Office, other government agencies or as required by law. The Company and the Share Registry may disclose your personal information to its agents and service providers as authorised by the *Privacy Act 1988* (Cth) or for purposes required by the ASX Listing Rules or Corporations Act. You may access your personal information by contacting the Share Registry and may request corrections to such personal information.

#### 3.16 Miscellaneous

All references in this Prospectus to \$, AUD or dollars are references to Australian currency, unless otherwise stated. All references to time in this Prospectus relate to the time in Sydney, New South Wales. Items displayed in photographs in this prospectus are not necessarily assets owned by the Company. The inclusion of photographs supplied by persons or entities other than the Company does not constitute an endorsement or recommendation by those persons or entities of the Offer Securities or the Convertible Notes offered under this Prospectus.

# 4. Key Details of Offer

# 4.1 Capital Raising

## **Background**

On Thursday, 28 September 2023, the Company announced that it was undertaking a capital raising to raise up to \$1,231,250 (before costs) comprising:

- (a) an offer of up to 800,000 Convertible Notes to professional and sophisticated investors, each with a face value of \$1.00 at a subscription price of \$1.00 per Convertible Note to raise up to \$800,000 (Convertible Note Offer); and
- (b) the placement of 287,500,000 Shares at an issue price of A\$0.0015 (0.15 cents) per share and 287,500,000 free attaching New Options (on a 1 for 1 entitlement basis) to raise A\$431,250 (before costs) from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors and directors (**Placement**). The Placement Shares will be issued as follows:
  - (i) 200,209,467 Shares to institutional, professional and sophisticated investors and directors pursuant to the Company's capacity to issue new Shares under ASX Listing Rule 7.1; and
  - (ii) 87,290,533 Shares to institutional, professional and sophisticated investors pursuant to the Company's capacity to issue new Shares under ASX Listing Rule 7.1A.

Further to the Company's announcement on Thursday, 28 September 2023 in relation to the Capital Raising, in addition to their initial commitment of A\$60,0000 Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer have agreed to further participate in the Placement and provide additional commitments in the aggregate amount of A\$170,000.

The issue of Shares and Options to the participating Directors under the Placement remains subject to the Company obtaining Shareholder approval at the November 2023 AGM for the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 10.11.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company has received firm commitments in the amount of A\$970,000 (before costs) under the Placement and the Convertible Note Offer (together the **Capital Raising**) from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors, Directors and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, respectively, comprising:

- (a) A\$368,750 from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors for 368,750 Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer:
- (b) A\$371,250 from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors for 247,500,000 Shares and attaching New Options under the Placement; and
- (c) A\$230,000 from Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer for 153,333,333 Shares and attaching New Options under the Placement, and such amount has been agreed to be offset against unpaid amounts owing and payable by the Company to those Directors and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, in the following proportions:
  - (i) as to Francesco Cannavo, executive director, the amount of A\$70,000 for 46,666,667 Shares and 46,666,667 attaching New Options:
  - (ii) as to Paul Stephenson, non-executive chairman, the amount of A\$70,000 for 46,666,667 Shares and 46,666,667 attaching New Options;
  - (iii) as to Matthew Leonard, executive director, the amount of A\$40,000 for 26,666,666 Shares and 26,666,666 New Options; and

(iv) as to Chow Yee Koh, Chief Financial Officer, the amount of A\$50,000 for 33,333,333 Shares and 33,333,333 New Options.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Convertible Note Offer remains open until the Offer Closing Date (unless otherwise determined by the Board).

It is intended that on or about the date of this Prospectus, the Company will issue the respective Convertible Notes, Placement Shares and attaching New Options.

# Convertible Note Terms

The Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer will be issued on the following key terms and conditions:

| Face Value        | A\$1.00 per Convertible Note.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |  |  |
|-------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|
| Coupon            | 12% per annum, accrued daily and capitalised to the face value of the Convertible Notes to be paid in Shares (and attaching Options) on conversion.                                                                                                                                             |  |  |
| Term to Maturity  | 18 months from date of issue.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |  |  |
| Conversion Price  | Each Convertible Note will be convertible into shares using the following formula:                                                                                                                                                                                                              |  |  |
|                   | No. Shares = No. Convertible Notes / Conversion Price                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |  |  |
|                   | Conversion Price means the lower of:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |  |  |
|                   | (a) a 30% discount to the 15 day VWAP of the Shares at the date of conversion; or                                                                                                                                                                                                               |  |  |
|                   | (b) the lowest traded price of the Shares in the 15 days preceding the date of conversion,                                                                                                                                                                                                      |  |  |
|                   | subject to a maximum conversion price of A\$0.002.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |  |  |
|                   | The Conversion Price has no minimum floor price.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                |  |  |
| Conversion Terms  | Subject in each case to the Company obtaining relevant shareholder approvals and complying with its disclosure requirements under the Act, Convertible Notes may be converted at the Note holder's request at any time prior to maturity, and will mandatorily convert on maturity of the term. |  |  |
|                   | The Company may at any time elect to redeem the Convertible Notes and repay the face value plus accrued interest.                                                                                                                                                                               |  |  |
|                   | A partial conversion election by a Note holder must in each case be for a minimum of 25% of the Convertible Notes issued to that Note holder under the Convertible Note Offer.                                                                                                                  |  |  |
| Attaching Options | The Note holders will be issued one (1) free attaching Option for each Share issued on conversion of the Convertible Notes, on a 1:1 basis ( <b>Conversion Options</b> ).                                                                                                                       |  |  |
|                   | The Conversion Options will expire on 11 December 2026 and can be exercised at A\$0.004 into one (1) Share in the Company.                                                                                                                                                                      |  |  |

| Other | The above terms of the Convertible Notes shall be adjusted on a pro-rata basis in the event the Company undertakes a consolidation of its Shares. |
|-------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
|       | The Convertible Notes are to be subject to customary terms which are contained within a Convertible Note Deed Poll executed by the Company.       |

The exercise of conversion rights under the Convertible Notes, and the issuance of Shares and the free attaching New Options on conversion, remain in each case subject to the Company obtaining shareholder approval to such issuances.

The issuance of the attaching Options under the Placement will remain subject to the Company obtaining necessary shareholder approval at the Company's November 2023 AGM.

## Use of Funds

Assuming the maximum amount of \$1,401,250.00 (before costs) is raised under the Capital Raising, it is intended that funds raised will be used as follows. If the Company raises less than the maximum amount under the Capital Raising, it is intended that the below allocation and use of funds raised shall be reduced proportionately:

| Proposed Use of Funds                                                                                                                                                                              | Estimated Cash<br>(A\$m) |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------|
| The Company's China-based operations for the sales and distribution of birds' nest products in the China market                                                                                    | \$800,000                |
| The Company's joint venture R&D work with Singapore-based Chemokine Yuesheng for the development of products including birds' nest extract tablets infused with Australian honey                   | \$50,000                 |
| Suitability and feasibility studies at the Company's Singapore R&D facility with respect to the development, manufacturing, and distribution of seaweed products in Singapore, China and Australia | \$50,000                 |
| Payment of unpaid amounts owing and payable to Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer.                                                                                                | \$230,000                |
| Working capital                                                                                                                                                                                    | \$154,667                |
| Costs of Capital Raising                                                                                                                                                                           | \$116,583                |
| Total                                                                                                                                                                                              | \$1,401,250              |

The above table is a statement of current intentions as of the date of this Prospectus. As with any budget, intervening events and new circumstances have the potential to affect the manner in which the funds are ultimately applied. The Board reserves the right to alter the way funds are applied on this basis.

## 4.2 Lead Manager

The Company has engaged Sanlam Private Wealth Pty Ltd (**Lead Manager**) to act as lead manager for the Capital Raising pursuant to the terms of a mandate dated 26 September 2023. In consideration for the services to be provided by the Lead Manager to the Company, the Lead Manager will receive the following fees:

- a capital raising success fee equal to 6% (plus GST) of the total amount raised under the Capital Raising (excluding commitments under the Placement from the Directors);
- (b) a one-off corporate administration and lead manager fee of \$5,000 plus GST; and
- (c) subject to the Company obtaining shareholder approval, the issue of 60,000,000 Options exercisable at \$0.004 (0.4 cents) each and expiring 11 December 2026 (**Lead Manager Options**). The issue of the Lead Manager Options will be subject to a pro rata adjustment if the Lead Manager raises less or more than \$800,000 under the Capital Raising.

No funds will be raised from the issue of the Lead Manager Options as the Lead Manager Options are being issued for nil cash consideration.

The issue of the Lead Manager Options will remain subject to the Company obtaining necessary shareholder approval at the Company's November 2023 AGM.

The Lead Manager Options will be issued on the terms and conditions set out in Section 6.2. All Shares issued upon exercise of the Lead Manager Options will rank equally with the Shares on issue as at the date of this Prospectus.

## 4.3 The Cleansing Offer

Pursuant to this Prospectus, the Company invites investors identified by the Directors to apply for up to 10,000 Shares at an issue price of \$0.0015 (0.15 cents) per Share together with 1 free attaching New Option for every Share subscribed for under the offer, to raise up to \$15 (before expenses) (**Cleansing Offer**). The Cleansing Offer will only be extended to specific parties on invitation from the Directors. Application Forms will only be provided by the Company to these parties.

The issuance of the New Options under the Cleansing Offer will remain subject to the Company obtaining necessary shareholder approval at the Company's November 2023 AGM.

The Shares offered under this Prospectus will rank equally with the existing Shares on issue. A general summary of the material rights and liabilities attaching to the Shares is set out in Section 6.1 of this Prospectus.

The New Options offered under this Prospectus will be issued on the terms and conditions set out in Section 6.2 of this Prospectus.

The Company will apply to the ASX for the Offer Securities offered pursuant to this Prospectus to be granted Official Quotation on ASX.

## 4.4 Purpose of this Prospectus

The purpose of this Prospectus is primarily to remove any sale restrictions that may be attached to, and facilitate future secondary trading of, the Offer Securities and any other Shares issued prior to the Closing Date in accordance with section 708A(11)(b) of the Corporations Act.

This Prospectus has also been issued to provide information on the Cleansing Offer being made under this Prospectus as required by the Corporations Act.

This Prospectus has also been issued to remove any sale restrictions that may be attached to, and facilitate future secondary trading of, the underlying Shares and New Options which may be issued on conversion of the Convertible Notes pursuant to ASIC's exemption based relief.

#### 4.5 Offer Opening Date and Offer Closing Date

The Offers are open for acceptances on the Offer Opening Date and all acceptances for Offer Securities and Convertible Notes and payments must be received by the Share Registry by 5.00 p.m. AEDT on the Offer Closing Date.

Subject to compliance with the ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations Act (as relevant), the Company reserves the right to close the Offers early or to extend the Offer Closing Date.

The Directors may at any time decide to withdraw this Prospectus and the Offers made under this Prospectus in which case, the Company will return all Application Monies (without interest) within 28 days of giving such notice of withdrawal.

# 4.6 Minimum Subscription

There is no minimum subscription for the Offers.

## 4.7 Oversubscription

No oversubscription for the Offers will be accepted by the Company.

#### 4.8 Applications

#### Convertible Note Offer

The offer for Convertible Notes will only be extended to sophisticated and professional investors identified by the Company in conjunction with the Lead Manager. Accordingly, the Convertible Note Offer will only be extended to specific parties on invitation from the Directors and the Application Form will be provided by the Company to these parties only.

By completing the Convertible Note Offer Application Form, you will be taken to have declared that all details and statements made by you are complete and accurate and that you have received personally the Convertible Note Offer Application Form together with a complete and unaltered copy of this Prospectus.

Payment for the Convertible Notes subscribed for under the Convertible Note Offer must be made in full at the subscription price of \$1.00 per Convertible Note. Completed Application Forms must be mailed or delivered to the address set out on the Application Form, with sufficient time to be received by or on behalf of the Company by no later than 5.00pm (AEST) on the Closing Date.

The Company reserves the right to close the Convertible Note Offer early.

## Cleansing Offer

Applications for the Offer Securities under the Cleansing Offer must only be made by investors at the direction of the Company and using the relevant Application Form accompanying this Prospectus. Payment for the Offer Securities must be made in full at the issue price of \$0.0015 (0.15 cents) per Share.

All cheques must be drawn on an Australian bank or bank draft made payable in Australian currency to "BPH Global Ltd" and crossed "Not Negotiable".

Completed Application Forms and cheques must be mailed or delivered to the address set out on the Application Form by no later than the Closing Date.

The Company reserves the right to close the Cleansing Offer early.

#### 4.9 Underwriting

The Offers are not underwritten.

#### 4.10 Lead Manager

As set out above, the Company has appointed Sanlam Private Wealth Pty Ltd as the Lead Manager to the Capital Raising.

Further details in respect of the appointment of the Lead Manager and the fees payable to the Lead Manager are set out in section 4.2 above.

## 4.11 No exposure period

No exposure period applies to the Options offered under this Prospectus due to the relief granted by ASIC Corporations (Exposure Period) Instrument 2016/74.

#### 4.12 Defects in Applications

If an Application Form is not completed correctly or if the accompanying payment is the wrong amount, the Company may, in its discretion, still treat the Application Form to be valid. The Company's decision to treat an application as valid, or how to construe, amend or complete it, will be final.

#### 4.13 Official Quotation

Application for Official Quotation of the Offer Shares issued pursuant to this Prospectus shall be made within 7 days after the date of this Prospectus. If ASX does not grant Official Quotation of the Offer Shares offered pursuant to this Prospectus before the expiry of 3 months after the date of this Prospectus, or such other period as varied by ASIC, the Company shall not issue any Offer Shares and shall repay all application monies for the Offer Shares within the period prescribed by the Corporations Act and without interest. The fact that the ASX may grant Official Quotation to the Offer Shares is not to be taken in any way as an indication of the merits of the Company or the Offer Shares now offered for subscription.

#### 4.14 Allotment

The Securities offered by this Prospectus will be issued in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules and timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus. Holding statements for Securities issued pursuant to the Cleansing Offer will be mailed in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules and timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus.

Pending the issue of the Offer Securities under the Cleansing Offer and the Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer or payment of refunds pursuant to this Prospectus, all application monies will be held by the Company in trust for the Applicants in a separate bank account as required by the Corporations Act. The Company, however, will be entitled to retain all interest that accrues on the bank account and each Applicant waives the right to claim interest.

The Directors will determine the recipients of all the Offer Securities under the Cleansing Offer and the Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer. The Directors reserve the right to reject any application or to allocate any Applicant fewer Offer Securities or Convertible Notes than the number applied for. Where the number of Offer Securities or Convertible Notes issued is less than the number applied for, or where no issue is made, surplus application monies will be refunded without any interest to the Applicant as soon as practicable after the Closing Date. Interest will not be paid on moneys refunded.

The Company's decision on the number of Offer Securities or Convertible Notes to be allocated to an Applicant will be final.

#### **4.15 CHESS**

The Company will participate in CHESS, the Clearing House Electronic Sub-Register System (CHESS) operated by ASX Settlement and Transfer Corporation Pty Ltd (ASTC), a

wholly owned subsidiary of ASX. This is regulated by the Listing Rules and Security Clearing House Business Rules.

Under this system, the Company will not issue certificates to investors. Instead, shareholders will receive a statement of their holdings in the Company.

If an investor is broker sponsored, ASX will send the broker a CHESS statement. The CHESS statement will set out the number of securities allotted to each investor under the Prospectus, give details of the investor's Holder Identification Number and give the Participant Identification Number of the sponsor.

If an investor is registered on the issuer sponsored subregister, their statement will be dispatched by the Share Registry and will contain the number of securities allotted under the Prospectus and the investor's Security holder Reference Number and their Sponsor Issuer Number.

A CHESS statement or Issuer Sponsored Statement will routinely be sent to investors at the end of any calendar month during which the balance of their holding changes. An investor may request a statement at any other time. However, a charge may be made for additional statements.

## 4.16 Foreign Selling Restrictions and Overseas Applicants

This Prospectus does not, and is not intended to, constitute an offer of securities in any place or jurisdiction in which, or to any person to whom, it would not be lawful to make such an offer or to issue this Prospectus. The distribution of this Prospectus in jurisdictions outside Australia may be restricted by law and persons who come into possession of this Prospectus should seek advice on and observe any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with such restrictions may constitute a violation of applicable securities laws.

The Company has not taken any action to register or qualify the Securities offered under this Prospectus, or otherwise to permit a public offering of the offered Securities, in any jurisdiction outside Australia.

It is the responsibility of any Applicant that is based in a foreign jurisdiction (outside Australia) to ensure compliance with all laws of any foreign jurisdiction that are relevant and applicable to their Application. The return of a properly completed Application Form will be taken by the Company to constitute a representation and warranty that there has been no breach of any application foreign jurisdiction laws and that all necessary approvals and consents have been obtained.

## 4.17 Dividend Policy

The Directors may pay any interim and final dividends as, in their judgement, the financial position of the Company justifies. Subject to any rights attaching to Shares, the Directors may fix the amount, time for payment and method of payment of a dividend. However, the Company does not intend to declare and pay any dividends in the immediately foreseeable future.

Investors should be aware that no guarantee is given by the Company or the Directors as to the performance of the Company or as to the timing or amount of any dividend payment.

## 4.18 Professional Advice

The Directors recommend that potential investors, when making an informed assessment of what will be the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses and prospects of the Company should read this Prospectus in its entirety.

Potential investors who have any questions about investing in the Company or are in any doubt about any matter relating to the Offers, should seek the advice of their professional advisers.

#### 4.19 Taxation

As it is not possible for the Company to provide individual taxation advice to each potential investor applying for Securities under this Prospectus, the Directors consider that it is not appropriate to provide advice regarding the taxation consequences for each investor applying for Securities pursuant to this Prospectus, or the taxation consequences of the Company conducting the Offers. Potential investors who have any questions about the taxation implications of the Offers should consult their professional taxation advisors. Please note that the Company and its officers do not accept any responsibility or liability for any taxation consequences resulting from participation in the Offers.

#### 4.20 Discretions

Without limiting the other powers and discretions set out in this Prospectus, the Directors (or their delegate for this purpose) may implement the Offers in the manner they think fit and settle any difficulty, anomaly or dispute which may arise either generally or in a particular case in connection with, or by reason of, the operation of the Offers or a matter in this Prospectus, as they think fit, whether generally or in relation to any Shareholder, any Shares or Options or Convertible Notes, and the determination of the Directors (or their delegate) is conclusive and binding on all relevant Shareholders and other persons to whom the determination relates.

#### 4.21 Withdrawal

The Company may at any time decide to withdraw this Prospectus and the Offers in which case the Company will return all Application monies without interest at the earliest practicable time.

#### 4.22 Enquiries

Any questions concerning the Offers should be directed to the Company Secretaries, Ms Elizabeth Spooner and Ms Belinda Cleminson on +61 (2) 8072 1400.

# 5. Purpose and Effect of the Offers and the Placement

# 5.1 Purpose of the Offers

## Cleansing Offer

The Cleansing Offer is included for the purpose of section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act to remove any trading restrictions that may have attached to the Offer Securities issued by the Company prior to the Closing Date (including prior to the date of this Prospectus).

Relevantly, section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act provides that a sale offer does not need disclosure to investors if:

- (a) the relevant securities are in a class of securities that are quoted securities of the body; and
- (b) either:
  - (i) a prospectus is lodged with the ASIC on or after the day on which the relevant securities were issued but before the day on which the sale offer is made; or
  - (ii) a prospectus is lodged with ASIC before the day on which the relevant securities are issued and Cleansing Offer of securities that have been made under the prospectus are still open for acceptance on the day on which the relevant securities were issued; and
- (c) the prospectus is for an offer of securities issued by the body that are in the same class of securities as the relevant securities.

The Company intends to apply the nominal funds raised under the Cleansing Offer (up to \$15) to meet the expenses of the Cleansing Offer. The expenses of the Cleansing Offer in excess of the funds raised under the Cleansing Offer will be met by the Company's cash reserves which shall include those funds raised under the Capital Raising.

## Capital Raising

The primary purpose of the Capital Raising is to raise up to approximately A\$1,401,250 (before costs) comprising:

- (a) up to A\$800,000 from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors under the Convertible Note Offer;
- (b) A\$371,250 from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors under the Placement; and
- (c) A\$230,000 from Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer under the Placement, with such amount agreed to be offset against unpaid amounts owing and payable by the Company to those participating Directors and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, as set out in Section 4.1 of this Prospectus.

The funds raised from the Capital Raising are planned to be used in accordance with the use of funds table set out in Section 4.1 of this Prospectus.

On completion of the Capital Raising, the Board believes the Company will have sufficient working capital to achieve the objectives stated in the use of funds table set out in Section 4.1 of this Prospectus. However, to the extent the Capital Raising is not fully subscribed, the Company will seek to appropriately scale back and or delay its discretionary spending, while it seeks alternative sources of funding (as required).

# 5.2 Effect of the Cleansing Offer and the Capital Raising on the financial position of the Company

The principal effect of the Offers and the Placement (assuming the Company issues the maximum number of Securities under the Offers and the Placement) will be to:

- (a) increase the cash reserves by approximately A\$1,171,250 (before deducting the estimated expenses of the Offers and the Placement) immediately after completion of the Offers and the Placement:
- (b) decrease trade and other payables by A\$230,000 by offsetting commitments by Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer under the Placement in that amount against unpaid amounts owing and payable by the Company to those participating Directors and the Company's Chief Financial Officer as set out in Section 4.1 of this Prospectus;
- (c) increase the number of Shares on issue from 1,334,729,781 to 1,735,573,114 Shares following completion of the Placement and the Offers;
- (d) increase the number of Options on issue from 454,600,983 to 915,444,316 Options following completion of the Placement and the Offers; and
- (e) to increase the number of Convertible Notes on issue from nil to 800,000.

## 5.3 Effect of the Offers and Placement on the Company's Balance Sheet

The below pro-forma balance sheet has been prepared assuming the maximum number of Securities offered under the Offers and the Placement (i.e. \$1,401,250 raised under the Capital Raising and \$15 raised under the Cleansing Offer) and that the Lead Manager is issued 60,000,000 Lead Manager Options. The pro-forma balance sheet also assumes no existing Options are exercised and includes expenses of \$116,583 (incl GST) under the Offers and the Placement.

The pro-forma balance sheet has been prepared to provide investors with information on the assets and liabilities of the Company and pro-forma assets and liabilities of the Company as noted below. The historical and pro-forma financial information is presented in an abbreviated form, insofar as it does not include all of the disclosures required by Australian Accounting Standards applicable to annual financial statements.

| BPH Global Limited Pro forma balance sheet based on June 2023 balances | Audited  June 2023  balances | Capital Raise<br>and Cleansing<br>Offer<br>Adjustments | Pro Forma<br>Post Capital<br>Raise and<br>Cleansing<br>Offer |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------|
|                                                                        | \$                           | \$                                                     | \$                                                           |
| ASSETS                                                                 |                              |                                                        |                                                              |
| CURRENT ASSETS                                                         |                              |                                                        |                                                              |
| Cash and cash equivalents                                              | 510,217                      | 1,054,667                                              | 1,564,884                                                    |
| Trade and other receivables                                            | 21,508                       | -                                                      | 21,508                                                       |
| Other assets                                                           | 97,806                       | -                                                      | 97,806                                                       |
| TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                                                   | 629,531                      | 1,054,667                                              | 1,684,198                                                    |
|                                                                        |                              |                                                        |                                                              |
| NON CURRENT ASSETS                                                     |                              |                                                        |                                                              |
| Plant and equipment                                                    | 633,440                      | -                                                      | 633,440                                                      |
| Intangible assets                                                      | 1                            | -                                                      | 1                                                            |
| Investment at fair value through profit or loss                        | 210,000                      | -                                                      | 210,000                                                      |

| TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS             | 843,441      | -         | 843,441      |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|-----------|--------------|
| TOTAL ASSETS                         | 1,472,972    | 1,054,667 | 2,527,639    |
| LIABILITIES                          |              |           |              |
| CURRENT LIABILITIES                  |              |           |              |
| Trade and other payables             | 1,281,909    | (230,000) | 1,051,909    |
| TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES            | 1,281,909    | (230,000) | 1,051,909    |
|                                      |              |           |              |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES                    | 1,281,909    | (230,000) | 1,051,909    |
|                                      |              |           |              |
| NET ASSETS                           | 191,063      | 1,284,667 | 1,475,730    |
|                                      |              |           |              |
| EQUITY                               |              |           |              |
| Contributed equity                   | 78,188,156   | 1,304,488 | 79,492,644   |
| Option reserve                       | 3,100,005    | 96,777    | 3,196,782    |
| Retained earnings                    | (81,308,147) | (116,598) | (81,424,745) |
| Foreign currency translation reserve | 40,120       | -         | 40,120       |
| EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS  | 20,134       | 1,284,667 | 1,304,801    |
| Non-controlling interest             | 170,929      | -         | 170,929      |
| TOTAL EQUITY                         | 191,063      | 1,284,667 | 1,475,730    |

## Pro Forma Transactions

- 1. Issue of 400,833,333 Placement Shares at \$0.0015 per Share to raise \$601,250. Issue of Placement Shares to Directors subject to shareholder approval at November 2023 AGM.
- 2. Offset A\$180,000 from funds raised under the Placement from the Directors of the Company against unpaid amounts owing and payable by the Company in the following proportions:
  - (a) as to Francesco Cannavo (executive director), the amount of A\$70,000;
  - (b) as to Paul Stephenson (non-executive chairman), the amount of A\$70,000; and
  - (c) as to Matthew Leonard (executive director), the amount of A\$40,000.
- 3. Offset A\$50,000 from funds raised under the Placement from Chow Yee Koh, Chief Financial Officer, against unpaid amounts owing and payable by the Company to Chow Yee Koh.
- 4. Issue of attaching New Options under the Placement, being 400,833,333 Options (ex. \$0.004 / exp 11 December 2026). Option value using Black-Scholes method \$84,175. Subject to Shareholder approval at the November 2023 AGM.
- 5. Issue of 800,000 Convertible Notes to raise \$800,000 (assuming max amount raised).
- Issue of 60,000,000 New Options to Sanlam (ex. \$0.004 / exp 11 December 2026).
   Option value using Black-Scholes method \$12,600. Subject to Shareholder approval at the November 2023 AGM.

- 7. Issue of 10,000 Shares under Cleansing Offer (\$15) and 10,000 attaching New Options (ex. \$0.004 / exp 11 December 2026). Option value \$2.
- 8. Costs of Offers and Placement \$116,583 (incl GST) per section 8.11 of this Prospectus.

The Company's Half Yearly Report for the first half of the financial year ending 30 June 2023 was released to ASX on 1 March 2023. The Company's Annual Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 was released to ASX on 29 September 2023. The Half Yearly Report and the Annual Report can be viewed at <a href="https://www.asx.com.au">www.asx.com.au</a>.

Additional information regarding the Company, including copies of ASX releases and investor presentations, is also available on <a href="https://www.asx.com.au">www.asx.com.au</a>.

#### 5.4 Effect of Offers and Placement on capital structure

|                                               | Shares                     | Options                    | Convertible<br>Notes |
|-----------------------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------|
| Current as at date of this Prospectus         | 1,334,729,781              | 454,600,983                | -                    |
| To be issued under Cleansing Offer            | 10,000 <sup>1</sup>        | 10,000 <sup>1,3</sup>      | -                    |
| To be issued under the Placement              | 400,833,333 <sup>2,3</sup> | 400,833,333 <sup>2,3</sup> | -                    |
| To be issued under the Convertible Note Offer | -                          | -                          | 800,0002             |
| To be issued to the Lead Manager              | -                          | 60,000,000 <sup>3,4</sup>  | -                    |
| Total after Offers and Placement              | 1,735,573,114              | 915,444,316                | 800,000              |

#### Notes:

- 1. Assuming the Cleansing Offer is fully subscribed.
- Assuming the Company raises the maximum amount under the Capital Raising as described at section 4.1.
- The issuance of the Lead Manager Options and the New Options under both the Cleansing Offer and Placement and the Shares under the Placement to Directors remains subject to the Company obtaining relevant shareholder approval at the November 2023 AGM.
- 4. Assuming the Company raises \$800,000 under the Capital Raising.

## 5.5 Effect of Offers on control of the Company

The Cleansing Offer will not have any material effect on control of the Company. The maximum number of Shares proposed to be issued under the Cleansing Offer is 10,000 which will represent approximately 0.0006% of the total Shares on issue following completion of the Cleansing Offer and the Placement (assuming the maximum amount is raised under the Placement and no further Shares are issued by the Company or existing Options or New Options are exercised or Convertible Notes are converted into Shares in the meantime).

The Convertible Note Offer will not have any immediate effect on control of the Company. Assuming the Convertible Note Offer is fully subscribed and 800,000 Convertible Notes are issued to applicants, if 100% of those Convertible Notes are converted into Shares the total number of Shares to be issued and the effect on the control of the Company will depend on the conversion price which is to be determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible Notes which are summarised at section 4.1.

For illustrative purposes only, set out below is a table which provides an indication of the effect that conversion of 100% of the 800,000 Convertible Notes offered under the Convertible Note Offer would have on the control of the Company at varying conversion prices.

| Conversion Price | No. Shares issued on Conversion <sup>1,3</sup> | % of total Shares on issue <sup>2</sup> |
|------------------|------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------|
| \$0.001          | 800,000,000                                    | 31.55%                                  |
| \$0.0015         | 533,333,333                                    | 23.51%                                  |
| \$0.002          | 400,000,000                                    | 18.73%                                  |

#### Notes:

- Assuming the Convertible Note Offer is fully subscribed, 800,000 Convertible Notes are
  issued by the Company and 100% of those Convertible Notes are converted into Shares.
  These figures exclude coupon payments accrued under the Convertible Note which are
  capitalised to the face value and paid by the issue of additional Shares at the conversion
  price.
- 2. Assuming the maximum amount is raised under the Placement and Cleansing Prospectus and no further Shares are issued by the Company or existing Options or New Options are exercised into Shares in the meantime.
- 3. For each Share issued on conversion of the Convertible Notes, one (1) free attaching New Option will be issued to the Convertible Note holder on a 1:1 basis.

# 6. Rights and Liabilities attaching to Shares and Offer Options

# 6.1 Rights and Liabilities attaching to Shares

The following is a summary of the more significant rights attaching to the Shares (being the underlying securities). This summary is not exhaustive and does not constitute a definitive statement of the rights and liabilities of Shareholders. If Applicants require more detailed advice regarding the rights and liabilities of Shareholders, they should seek independent legal advice.

Full details of the rights attaching to Shares are set out in the Constitution, a copy of which is available for inspection at the Company's registered office during normal business hours.

## (a) General meetings

Each Shareholder is entitled to receive notice of all general meetings of the Company and to receive all notices, accounts and other documents required to be sent to Shareholders under the Constitution, the Corporations Act or the ASX Listing Rules.

Shareholders are entitled to be present in person, or by proxy, attorney or representative to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company.

Shareholders may requisition meetings in accordance with section 249D of the Corporations Act and the Constitution.

## (b) Voting rights

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to Shares, at general meetings of Shareholders:

- (i) each Shareholder entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy, attorney or representative;
- (ii) on a show of hands, every person present who is a Shareholder or a proxy, attorney or representative of a Shareholder has one vote; and
- (iii) on a poll, every person present who is a Shareholder or a proxy, attorney or representative of a Shareholder will, in respect of each fully paid Share held by that Shareholder, or in respect of which that Shareholder is appointed a proxy, attorney or representative, have one vote for the Share, but in respect of partly paid Shares have such number of votes as bears the same proportion to the total of such Shares registered in the Shareholder's name as the amount paid (not credited) bears to the total amounts paid and payable (excluding amounts credited).

# (c) Dividend rights

Subject to the Corporations Act, the Directors may from time to time declare such dividends as appear to the Directors to be justified by the profits of the Company.

Subject to the rights of persons entitled to securities with special rights as to dividends, all dividends are paid in the proportion that the amounts paid on those Shares bear to the issue price of the Shares.

# (d) Winding up

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the authority of a special resolution of the Company, divide among the Shareholders in kind the whole or any part of the property of the Company, and may for that purpose set such value as the liquidator considers fair upon any property to be so divided, and may determine how

the division is to be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of security holders.

The liquidator may, with the authority of a special resolution of the Company, vest the whole or any part of any such property in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidator thinks fit, but so that no Shareholder is compelled to accept any Shares or other securities in respect of which there is any liability.

## (e) Shareholder liability

As the Shares issued will be fully paid shares, they will not be subject to any calls for money by the Directors and will therefore not become liable for forfeiture.

#### (f) Transfer of Shares

Generally, Shares are freely transferable, subject to formal requirements, the registration of the transfer not resulting in a contravention of or failure to observe the provisions of a law of Australia and the transfer not being in breach of the Corporations Act or the ASX Listing Rules.

## (g) Future increase in capital

The issue of any Shares is under the control of the Directors. Subject to restrictions on the issue or grant of Securities contained in the ASX Listing Rules, the Constitution and the Corporations Act (and without affecting any special right previously conferred on the holder of an existing share or class of shares), the Directors may issue Shares as they shall, in their absolute discretion, determine.

## (h) Variation of rights

Pursuant to section 246B of the Corporations Act, the Company may, with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a meeting of security holders or with the written consent of the majority of security holders in the affected class, vary or abrogate the rights attaching to the securities (including Shares).

## (i) Alteration of Constitution

The Constitution can only be amended by a special resolution passed by at least 75% of Shareholders present (in person, by proxy, attorney or representative) and voting at the general meeting.

#### 6.2 Terms and Conditions of Offer Options

## (a) Entitlement

Each Offer Option entitles the holder to subscribe for one Share upon exercise of the Offer Option.

## (b) Expiry Date

Each Offer Option will expire at 5.00pm (Sydney Time) on 11 December 2026 (**Expiry Date**).

## (c) Exercise Price

Each Offer Option will have an exercise price of \$0.004 (0.4 cents) (**Exercise Price**).

# (d) Exercise period and lapsing

Subject to clause (i), Offer Options may be exercised at any time after the date of issue and prior to the Expiry Date. After this time, any unexercised Offer Options will automatically lapse.

# (e) Exercise Notice and payment

Offer Options may be exercised by notice in writing to the Company (**Exercise Notice**) together with payment to the Company of the Exercise Price for each Offer Option being exercised. Any Exercise Notice for an Offer Option received by the Company will be deemed to be a notice of the exercise of that Offer Option as at the date of receipt. Cheques paid in connection with the exercise of Offer Options must be in Australian currency, made payable to the Company and crossed "Not Negotiable".

#### (f) Shares issued on exercise

Shares issued on exercise of Offer Options will rank equally in all respects with then existing fully paid ordinary shares in the Company.

## (g) Quotation of Shares

Provided that the Company is quoted on the official list of ASX Limited at the time, application will be made by the Company to ASX Limited for quotation of the Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the Offer Options.

#### (h) Timing of issue of Shares

Subject to clause (i), within 5 business days after receipt of an Exercise Notice the Company will allot and issue the Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Offer Options. The Company makes no representation that the Shares will be freely tradeable upon issue and the holder acknowledges that the Shares may be subject to the on-sale restrictions contained in sections 706 and 707 of the *Corporations Act 2001* (Cth) (**Corporations Act**). In these circumstances, the holder agrees not to trade the Shares for so long as the Shares are subject to such restrictions.

## (i) Shareholder and regulatory approvals

- (i) Notwithstanding any other provision of these terms and conditions, exercise of Offer Options into Shares will be subject to the Company obtaining all required (if any) Shareholder and regulatory approvals for the purpose of issuing the Shares to the holder.
- (ii) If exercise of the Offer Options would result in any person being in contravention of section 606 of the Corporations Act then the exercise of each Option that would cause the contravention will be deferred until such time or times that the exercise would not result in a contravention of section 606 of the Corporations Act.
- (iii) Holders must give notification to the Company in writing if they consider that the exercise of the Offer Options may result in the contravention of section 606 of the Corporations Act, failing which the Company will be entitled to assume that the exercise of the Offer Options will not result in any person being in contravention of section 606 of the Corporations Act.

## (j) Participation in new issues

There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the Offer Options and holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the Offer Options. However, the Company will ensure that for the purposes of determining entitlements to any such issue, the record date will be at least four business days after the issue is announced. This is intended to give the holders of Offer Options the opportunity to exercise their Offer

Options prior to the announced record date for determining entitlements to participate in any such issue.

## (k) Adjustment for bonus issues of Shares

If the Company makes a bonus issue of Shares or other securities to existing Shareholders (other than an issue in lieu or in satisfaction of dividends or by way of dividend reinvestment):

- (i) the number of Shares which must be issued on the exercise of an Offer Option will be increased by the number of Shares which the holder would have received if the holder had exercised the Offer Option before the record date for the bonus issue; and
- (ii) no change will be made to the Exercise Price.

## (I) Adjustment for rights issue

If the Company makes an issue of Shares pro rata to existing Shareholders there will be no adjustment to the Exercise Price.

## (m) Adjustments for reorganisation

If there is any reconstruction of the issued share capital of the Company, the rights of the holders may be varied to comply with the Listing Rules which apply to the reconstruction at the time of the reconstruction.

## (n) Quotation of Options

The Company does not intend to apply for quotation of the Offer Options to ASX.

## (o) Transferability

The Offer Options are transferable subject to any restriction or escrow arrangements imposed by ASX or under applicable Australian securities laws.

#### 7. Risk Factors

#### 7.1 Introduction

An investment in the Company is not risk free and the Shares and Options should be regarded as speculative.

There are specific risks which relate directly to the Company's activities. In addition, there are other general risks, many of which are largely beyond the control of the Company and the Directors. The risks identified in this section, or other risk factors, may have a material impact on the financial performance of the Company and the market price of the Shares.

The following is not intended to be an exhaustive list of the risk factors to which the Company is exposed and do not take into account the individual circumstances of Shareholders.

The Directors strongly recommend potential Applicants to consider the risk factors described below, together with information contained elsewhere in this Prospectus and consult with their professional advisers before deciding whether to apply for Offer Securities or Convertible Notes under this Prospectus.

The following is not intended to be an exhaustive list of the risk factors to which the Company is exposed.

## 7.2 Specific Risks

## (a) Funding

The future capital requirements of the Company will depend on many factors including the success of the technology proof-of-concept program and partner collaborations and in the possible commercialisation of the Company's own products.

The Company intends to identify, evaluate and source new business opportunities that meet investment criteria set by the Company. The Company may require additional funds to fund these new business opportunities. Should the Company require such additional funding, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Any inability to obtain additional finance, if required, would have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and its financial condition and performance.

## (b) **COVID-19**

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) is impacting global economic markets. The nature and extent of the effect of the outbreak on the performance of the Company remains unknown. The Company's Share price may be adversely affected in the short to medium term by the economic uncertainty caused by COVID-19. Further, any governmental or industry measures taken in response to COVID-19 may adversely impact the Company's operations and are likely to be beyond the control of the Company.

# (c) Force majeure

The Company, now or in the future, may be adversely affected by risks outside the control of the Company including epidemics and pandemics, labour unrest, machinery or equipment breakdown or damage, transportation disruptions, civil disorder, war, subversive activities or sabotage, extreme weather conditions, fires, floods, explosions or other catastrophes or quarantine restrictions. In particular, the current coronavirus pandemic had restricted world travel and public gatherings (including attendance on retail outlets) which will impact the Company's operations, including in relation to sales and product distribution.

#### (d) Technology risk

Cannabis and seaweed technologies are early-stage technologies that require significant further development to evaluate, optimise and validate future product development. The Company has engaged consultants and initiated various study and evaluation programs to identify and optimise its products, but there can be no certainty that this aim can be achieved. The Company can give no guarantees that its products will successfully achieve proof-of-concept nor any commercial outcomes.

# (e) Research and development risk

In order to remain competitive, the Company intends to continue to undertake research and development. The Company makes no representation that any of its research into or development of its delivery systems technologies and products will be successful or that the delivery system technologies will be developed into products that are commercially exploitable.

There are many risks inherent in the development of products, particularly where the products are in the early stages of development.

Projects can be delayed or fail to demonstrate any benefit, or research may cease to be viable for a range of scientific and commercial reasons.

In addition, there may not be sufficient resources to maintain the Company's research and development activities and sales efforts. The Company provides no assurance that its research and development activities will result in the creation of any new intellectual property or know-how capable of being utilised in the Company's business activities.

## (f) Intellectual property risk

The Group previously filed an application for patent protection in Singapore, however, the application was rejected on various grounds. The Company has obtained a China patent (patent number 2015105593775) which is granted. This patent focused on Clonal rapid breeding method of dendrobium officinale. The China patent application was based on the Singapore patent application (PCT/SG2014/000515), and tailored for protecting the Company's technology in China. China is the main target market for the commercialisation of this TCM based product and therefore securing the patent grant in China was the main priority for the Company.

The Group is giving further consideration to whether it will continue pursuing patent protection in Singapore and other jurisdictions. However, there is no guarantee that any future patent applications filed by the Group will not infringe competitor patents or that any such patent applications will be granted by authorities in key jurisdictions, given that patents on similar subject matter have been granted. Prior to the grant of any future patent applications, the Company may request the inventors (and any potential inventors) of the relevant technology (to the extent they have not already done so) to assign ownership of the technology to the Group. This will mitigate the risk of any challenge to the ownership of a patent by an inventor after the patents are granted. If the assignment documentation is not signed by the inventors (or any potential inventors) prior to the grant of the patents to the Company or the Group, there is a risk that the patents could be revoked if subsequently challenged by the inventors.

# (g) Competitive risk and market acceptance

Multiple early-stage and mature competitors may exist in some or all of the industry sectors which the Company operates within including those that have more advanced passive and active technologies and products marketed or in

development. Competition by superior technologies and/or products may negatively affect the potential of the Group's technologies and/or future products.

The success of the Group's products will depend on the competitiveness and acceptance of such technology by the market, as well as the Company's ability to improve the relevant product offerings to meet the evolving needs of customers on a timely basis. The global marketplace for most products is constantly changing due to new technologies, new products, changes in preferences, changes in regulations and other factors influencing market acceptance or market rejection. This market volatility and risk exists despite the best endeavours of market research, promotion and sales and licensing campaigns.

#### (h) Commercialisation risk

The Company seeks to commercialise its technology and/or potential pipeline products through both out-licensing to distribution partners and undertaking its own product development. The Company is collaborating with several potential partners to evaluate the technology for future development and licensing deals but there is no guarantee that any licensing agreement will be executed nor that the Company will achieve future licensing fees or royalty income. A successful proof-of-concept program must be achieved for the Company's products to achieve commercialisation, and this cannot be guaranteed.

In undertaking the development of its own products utilising the Company's technologies, there can be no guarantee that the resulting products will be commercialised or will perform satisfactorily to their intended application.

## (i) Market risk

The Company operates in various industry sectors and is seeking to further diversify its business risk by diversifying the industry sectors which it operates within. There can be no assurance that the Company will secure such new business opportunities or that the new opportunities will provide additional value to the Company.

The Company may also be adversely affected by the general market sentiment towards the industry sectors which it operates or may operate within.

#### (j) Climate change

There are a number of climate-related factors that may affect the Company's business or its assets. For instance:

- (i) climate change or prolonged periods of adverse weather and climatic conditions (including rising sea levels, floods, hail, drought, water scarcity, temperature extremes, frosts, earthquakes and pestilences) may have an adverse effect on the Company's ability to access and utilise its operations and/or on the Company's ability to transport or sell its products; and
- (ii) changes in policy, technological innovation and consumer or investor preferences could adversely impact the Company's business strategy or the value of its assets, or may result in less favourable pricing for products, particularly in the event of a transition (which may occur in unpredictable ways) to a lower-carbon economy.

## (k) Regulatory

Changes in relevant taxes, legal and administration regimes, accounting practice and government policies may adversely affect the financial performance of the Company.

## (I) Competition risk

The industry in which the Company will be involved is subject to domestic and global competition.

Although the Company will undertake all reasonable due diligence in its business decisions and operations, the Company will have no influence or control over the activities or actions of its competitors, which activities or actions may, positively or negatively, affect the operating and financial performance of the Company's projects and business.

#### (m) Insurance risks

The Company intends to insure its operations in accordance with industry practice. However, in certain circumstances, the Company's insurance may not be of a nature or level to provide adequate insurance cover.

The occurrence of an event that is not covered or fully covered by insurance could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results of the Company. Insurance against all risks associated with the business's operations is not always available and where available the costs can be prohibitive.

## (n) Reliance on key management

The responsibility of overseeing the day-to-day operations and the strategic management of the Company depends substantially on its senior management and its key personnel.

There can be no assurance given that there will be no detrimental impact on the Company if one or more of these employees cease their employment.

# (o) Supply of Raw Materials

The Company is dependent on the supply of raw materials to carry on its business. Such supply may be disrupted because of weather, transportation and other matters outside the Company's control.

#### (p) Manufacturing of Product:

To the extent the Company relies on a third party to produce products on its behalf, until the Company has the capacity to manufacture products itself, it is reliant on third parties having the capacity to do so within the timeframes required by the Company and at a reasonable cost. Circumstances may arise where the Company is unable to achieve the manufacture of products on this basis.

## (q) Supply and Demand:

The price of raw materials used by the Company may fluctuate, as may demand for its products. The Company's ability to make a profit on sales will depend on it being able to maintain a margin between its cost of raw materials, production and distribution and the price at which it is able to sell its products.

#### (r) **Product liability:**

The Company provides products for use in Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) and food products to deliver TCM-based health benefits, which are used and/or consumed by humans for therapeutic and other purposes. If the Company's product(s) causes damage or loss of life, claims may be made against the Company that it has supplied defective products. Such claims could be costly to defend and could result in the Company being liable for substantial damages.

#### (s) **Personnel**:

As the Company expands its business it will be reliant on being able to attract and employ suitably qualified persons to work in its business. If the Company is unable to attract and employ suitably qualified persons the growth of the Company's business maybe impeded.

## (t) Currency Risk:

The Shares and Options the subject of the Cleansing Offer and Convertible Notes subjection of the Convertible Note Offer are denominated in Australia dollars whereas the Company carries on business in China, Singapore and Malaysia (in addition to Australia) and receives income and has expenditure denominated in the currencies of those respective nations.

Accordingly, an investment in the Company will involve currency risks as between the Australian dollar, the Singapore dollar, the Chinese Yuan, the Malaysian Ringgit and other currencies.

## (u) Market Adoption Risk:

The successful commercialisation of the Company's products depends on market acceptance. The take up of product will rely on intensive marketing and education of manufacturers and distributors of those products. Competition in the market may also result in a slower adoption rate.

#### 7.3 General risks

#### (a) Economic risks and market conditions

Factors, such as, but not limited to, world economic conditions, political instability, stock market trends, interest rates, exchange rates, inflation levels, commodity prices, industrial disruption, environmental impacts, international competition, taxation changes and legislative or regulatory changes may all have an adverse impact on our revenues, operating costs, profit margins and Share price. These factors are beyond the control of the Company and the Company cannot predict how they will impact its business.

#### (b) Sovereign Risk

The Group's operations will continue to include a focus on markets in China and South East Asia, including but not limited to Singapore and Malaysia. Possible sovereign risks associated with operating in China and these South East Asian nations include, without limitation, changes in the terms of legislation, changes to taxation rates and concessions and changes in the ability to enforce legal rights. Any of these factors may, in the future, adversely affect the financial performance of the Group and the market price of the Company's Shares and Options.

No assurance can be given regarding the future economic or political stability in China, the South East Asian nations or any other nation in which the Group may, in the future, have an interest.

## (c) Additional requirements for capital

Further funds will be required for the Company to complete is current programs and achieve its current objectives. Until the Company develops or acquires an income producing asset, it will be dependent on its cash resources and the ability of the Company to obtain future equity or debt funding.

Additional equity financing may be dilutive to Shareholdings and debt financing, if available, may involve restrictions on financing and operating activities. There are no assurances that additional financing will be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

If the Company is unable to obtain additional financing as needed, it may be required to reduce the scope of its operations.

## (d) Implications of Chapter 6 of the Corporations Act

Shareholders may be prevented from acquiring Shares and Options under this Prospectus where to do so would contravene the takeovers prohibition in section 606 of the Corporations Act. Section 606 prohibits a person from acquiring a "relevant interest" (as defined in the Corporations Act) in issued voting shares in a listed company if, because of the transaction, that person's or someone else's voting power in the listed company increases from 20% or below to more than 20% or from a starting point that is above 20% and below 90%, unless an exception applies. There are various exceptions to the general prohibition. However, there is no guarantee that an exception would be available in the relevant circumstances and, even if an exception was potentially available, there is a risk that the exception could not be relied upon without significant cost or delay.

## 8. Additional Information

# 8.1 Continuous disclosure obligations

This is a Prospectus for the offer of options to acquire continuously quoted securities (as defined in the Corporations Act) of the Company and is issued pursuant to section 713 of the Corporations Act as a transaction specific prospectus. Accordingly, this Prospectus does not contain the same level of disclosure as an initial public offering prospectus.

The Company is a 'disclosing entity' (as defined in section 111AC of the Corporations Act) for the purposes of section 713 the Corporations Act and, as such, is subject to regular reporting and disclosure obligations. Further, as an ASX-listed company whose Shares and Options are quoted on the ASX under the code 'BP8', the Company is subject to the ASX Listing Rules which require it to immediately notify the ASX of any information concerning the Company of which it is or becomes aware and which a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price or value of Shares, subject to certain exceptions.

This Prospectus is a "transaction specific prospectus". In general terms a "transaction specific prospectus" is only required to contain information in relation to the effect of the issue of securities on a company and the rights attaching to the securities. It is not necessary to include general information in relation to all of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses or prospectus of the issuing company.

This Prospectus is intended to be read in conjunction with the publicly available information in relation to the Company which has been notified to ASX and does not include all of the information that would be included in a prospectus for an initial public offering of securities in an entity that is not already listed on a stock exchange. Investors should therefore have regard to the other publicly available information in relation to the Company before making a decision whether or not to invest.

Having taken such precautions and having made such enquiries as are reasonable, the Company believes that it has complied with the general and specific requirements of the ASX Listing Rules as applicable from time to time which apply to disclosing entities and which require the Company to notify ASIC of information available to the stock market conducted by ASX, from the date of the Company's admission to the Official List of the ASX.

Information that is already in the public domain has not been reported in this Prospectus other than that which is considered necessary to make this Prospectus complete.

The Company, as a disclosing entity under the Corporations Act states that:

- (a) it is subject to regular reporting and disclosure obligations;
- (b) copies of documents lodged with ASIC in relation to the Company (not being documents referred to in section 1274(2)(a) of the Corporations Act) may be obtained from, or inspected at, an office of ASIC during normal office hours; and
- (c) the Company will provide a copy of each of the following documents, free of charge, to any person on request from the Prospectus Date until the Offer Closing Date:
  - (i) the annual financial report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2023, being the annual financial report of the Company most recently lodged with ASIC before the issue of this Prospectus; and
  - (ii) any continuous disclosure documents given by the Company to ASX in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules as referred to in section 674(1) of the Corporations Act in the period from lodgement of the annual financial report referred to in paragraph (i) above until the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

Copies of all documents lodged with ASIC in relation to the Company can be inspected at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours.

Details of documents lodged by the Company with ASX since the date of lodgement of the Company's latest annual financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 (on 29 September 2023) and before the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC are set out in the table below:

| Date              | Description of Announcement                    |  |
|-------------------|------------------------------------------------|--|
| 29 September 2023 | Appendix 4G and Corporate Governance Statement |  |

ASX maintains electronic files containing publicly available information for all listed companies. The Company's electronic file including announcements and other publicly available information is available for inspection at the ASX website https://www2.asx.com.au/. The Company's announcements are also available through the Company's website https://bphglobal.com.au/.

## 8.2 Litigation

As at the Prospectus Date, the Company is not involved in any material legal proceedings and the Directors are not aware of any material legal proceedings pending or threatened against the Company.

#### 8.3 Market Price of Shares

The Company is a disclosing entity for the purposes of the Corporations Act and its Securities are enhanced disclosure securities quoted on the ASX.

The highest, lowest and last market sale prices of the Shares on ASX during the three months immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus and the respective dates of those sales were:

|            | 3 month high | 3 month low    | Last market price |
|------------|--------------|----------------|-------------------|
| Price (\$) | 0.003        | 0.0015         | 0.0015            |
| Date       | 10 July 2023 | 2 October 2023 | 11 October 2023   |

<sup>\*</sup>Source: www.asx.com.au

#### 8.4 Substantial holders

Those persons which (together with their Associates) have a relevant interest in 5% or more of the Shares on issue in the Company as at the date of this Prospectus are set out below:

| Substantial Shareholder | Shares      | %     |
|-------------------------|-------------|-------|
| Mr Huanqing Gu          | 112,666,667 | 8.44% |
| Mr Yanhua Huang         | 103,947,368 | 7.79% |

## 8.5 Interests of Directors

Other than as set out in this Prospectus, no Director or proposed director holds or has held within the two (2) years preceding the lodgement of this Prospectus any interest in:

- (a) the formation or promotion of the Company;
- (b) any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company in connection with its formation or promotion or the Offers; or
- (c) the Offers,

and no amounts have been paid or agreed to be paid (in cash or Shares or otherwise) and no other benefit has been given or agreed to be given to any Director or proposed director or to any entity in which such a Director or proposed Director is a partner or director, either to induce them to become, or to qualify as, a Director or otherwise for services rendered by them or by the entity in connection with the formation or promotion of the Company or the Offers.

#### 8.6 Disclosure relating to Francesco Cannavo

Francesco Cannavo is the sole director and shareholder of Golden Venture Capital Pty Ltd ACN 639 258 245 (**GVC**), which previously provided corporate advisory services to the Company, including with respect to the introduction of investors and brokers to the Company for the purposes of its various capital raising activities.

Accordingly, Mr Cannavo has an interest in the Securities of the Company as disclosed in sections 8.7 and 8.8 below which were issued or may be issued to Mr Cannavo (or his Associates) individually and in his capacity as sole director and shareholder of GVC.

#### 8.7 Interests of Directors in Shares

The relevant interests of each Director, or former Director (if such Director resigned less than 6 months before the issue of this Prospectus) in the Shares of the Company held either directly or through their Associates as at the date of this Prospectus, are set out in the table below. This table includes Shares that are held both directly and indirectly through their Associates.

| Director          | Shares <sup>1</sup> |              |
|-------------------|---------------------|--------------|
|                   | Shares              | Voting Power |
| Directors         |                     |              |
| Huanqing Gu       | 112,666,667         | 8.44%        |
| Paul Stephenson   | 9,979,193           | 0.75%        |
| Francesco Cannavo | 5,828,033           | 0.44%        |
| Matthew Leonard   | 4,166,667           | 0.31%        |
| Yanhua Huang      | 103,947,368         | 7.79%        |
| Former Directors  |                     |              |
| Paul Rosen        | -                   | -            |
| Chow Yee Koh      | 7,166,667           | 0.54%        |
| Total             | 243,754,595         | 18.26%       |

Notes

1. Assumes no Options currently held are exercised prior to the Prospectus Date.

#### 8.8 Interests of Directors in Options

The relevant interests of each Director or former Directors (if such Director resigned less than 6 months before the issue of this Prospectus) in the Options of the Company held either directly or through their Associates as at the date of this Prospectus are set out in the table below. This table includes Options that are held both directly and indirectly through their Associates.

| Director          | Existing Options         |  |
|-------------------|--------------------------|--|
| Directors         |                          |  |
| Huanqing Gu       | 4,166,667 <sup>5</sup>   |  |
| Paul Stephenson   | 9,166,665 <sup>1</sup>   |  |
| Francesco Cannavo | 9,166,665 <sup>3,6</sup> |  |
| Matthew Leonard   | 9,166,665 <sup>3,5</sup> |  |
| Yanhua Huang      | 25,000,000 <sup>4</sup>  |  |
| Former Directors  |                          |  |
| Paul Rosen        | 50,000,000 <sup>2</sup>  |  |
| Chow Yee Koh      | 4,166,667 <sup>5</sup>   |  |
| Total             | 110,833,329              |  |

#### Notes

- 1. 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.017 per option and expiring 28 February 2027. 4,166,665 listed options exercisable at \$0.01 per option and expiring 7 July 2027. Options are held by Paul Stephenson indirectly via his associated entity, Atidim Investments Pty Ltd.
- 2. 25,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.10 per option and expiring 1 November 2028; 25,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.05 per option and expiring 1 November 2027.
- 3. 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.02 per option and expiring 28 February 2027. Options are held by Francesco Cannavo indirectly via his associated entity, Golden Venture Capital Pty Ltd.
- 4. 25,000,000 listed options exercisable at \$0.01 per option and expiring 7 July 2027.
- 5. 4,166,665 listed options exercisable at \$0.01 per option and expiring 7 July 2027.
- 6. 4,166,665 listed options exercisable at \$0.01 per option and expiring 7 July 2027. Options are held by Francesco Cannavo indirectly via his associated entity, Apertus Capital Pty Ltd..

## 8.9 Remuneration of Directors

The Directors have received the following remuneration in respect of the financial years ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023.

| Director          | Remuneration<br>(\$) for financial<br>year ended<br>30 June 2022 <sup>4</sup> | Remuneration<br>Package (\$) for<br>financial year<br>ended 30 June<br>2023 <sup>4,6</sup> | Remuneration<br>Package (\$) for<br>financial year<br>ended 30 June<br>2024 <sup>5,6</sup> |
|-------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| Current Directors |                                                                               |                                                                                            |                                                                                            |

| Director                                                      | Remuneration<br>(\$) for financial<br>year ended<br>30 June 2022 <sup>4</sup> | Remuneration<br>Package (\$) for<br>financial year<br>ended 30 June<br>2023 <sup>4,6</sup> | Remuneration<br>Package (\$) for<br>financial year<br>ended 30 June<br>2024 <sup>5,6</sup> |
|---------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| Mr Paul Stephenson,<br>Non-Executive Chairman <sup>3,12</sup> | \$399,200                                                                     | \$180,863                                                                                  | \$98,000                                                                                   |
| Mr Huanqing Gu,<br>Non-Executive Director <sup>13</sup>       | \$500,681                                                                     | \$148,672                                                                                  | \$48,000                                                                                   |
| Mr Francesco Cannavo, Executive Director <sup>2</sup>         | \$343,543                                                                     | \$188,590                                                                                  | \$120,000                                                                                  |
| Matthew Leonard Executive Director                            | -                                                                             | \$115,425                                                                                  | \$120,000                                                                                  |
| Mr Yanhua Huang<br>Non-Executive Director <sup>7,11</sup>     | \$118,200                                                                     | \$15,000                                                                                   | \$48,000                                                                                   |
| Former Directors                                              |                                                                               |                                                                                            |                                                                                            |
| Mr Paul Rosen, Non-Executive Chairman <sup>1,9</sup>          | \$684,678                                                                     | \$316,319                                                                                  |                                                                                            |
| Mr Chow Yee Koh,<br>Executive Director <sup>10, 14</sup>      | \$359,840                                                                     | \$175,810                                                                                  | \$120,000                                                                                  |
| Mr Qi Lu,<br>Non-Executive Director <sup>8</sup>              | \$41,820                                                                      | \$9,000                                                                                    | -                                                                                          |

#### Notes:

- 1. Mr Rosen resigned as a Director on 12 May 2023.
- 2. Mr Cannavo was appointed as a Director on 21 July 2021.
- 3. Mr Stephenson was appointed as a Director on 31 March 2020.
- 4. Remuneration includes both cash and non-cash remuneration as stated in the Company's Annual Report to Shareholders released to ASX 30 September 2022.
- 5. The proposed total remuneration packages for each of the directors for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 are approximations and remain subject to change.
- 6. Excluding superannuation, bonuses, termination benefits and any director incentive options.
- 7. Mr Yanhua Huang resigned as a Director on 20 September 2022 and was re-appointed as a Director on 6 July 2023
- 8. Mr Qi Lu resigned as a Director on 20 September 2022.
- On 14 March 2023, Mr Paul Rosen cancelled and relinquished the following options previously issued to him and which comprised part of his director remuneration package during the relevant financial year:
  - (a) 25,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.017 and expiring 9 April 2026; and
  - (b) 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 28 February 2027.
- 10. On 14 March 2023, Mr Chow Yee Koh cancelled and relinquished the following options previously issued to him and which comprised part of his director remuneration package during the relevant financial year:

- (a) 500,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 18 December 2025 issued during 2021 Financial Year; and
- (b) 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 28 February 2027.
- 11. On 15 March 2023, Mr Yanhua Huang cancelled and relinquished the following options previously issued to him and which comprised part of his director remuneration package during the relevant financial year:
  - (a) 6,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 18 December 2025 issued during 2021 Financial Year; and
  - (b) 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 28 February 2027.
- 12. On 16 March 2023, Atidim Investments Pty Ltd (an associated entity of Mr Paul Stephenson) cancelled and relinquished the following options previously issued to it and which comprised part of Mr Paul Stephenson's director remuneration package during the relevant financial year:
  - (a) 500,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 18 December 2025 issued during 2021 Financial Year; and
  - (b) 5,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 28 February 2027.
- 13. On 24 March 2023, Mr Huanqing Gu, cancelled and relinquished the following options previously issued to him and which comprised part of his director remuneration package during the relevant financial year:
  - (a) 9,500,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 5 December 2028;
  - (b) 9,500,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 16 December 2024;
  - (c) 15,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 18 December 2025; and
  - (d) 10,000,000 options exercisable at \$0.01 and expiring 28 February 2027.
- 14. Mr Chow Yee Koh resigned as a Director on 31 March 2023. Mr Chow Yee Koh remains employed by the Company in the position of Chief Financial Officer.

#### 8.10 Director Indemnity Deeds

The Company has entered into a deed of indemnity with each of the Directors. Under such deeds, the Company has undertaken, subject to the restriction in the Corporations Act, to indemnity all Directors against all losses or liabilities incurred by each Director in their capacities as directors of the Company.

# 8.11 Cash Expenses of the Offers and Placement

The expenses of the Offers and Placement are estimated to be approximately \$106,276 (excl GST) or \$116,583 (incl GST) as follows (assuming the Offers and Placement are fully subscribed and the maximum amount is raised under the Capital Raising):

| Expense                         | Amount<br>(excl GST) | GST      | Total Amount<br>(incl GST) |
|---------------------------------|----------------------|----------|----------------------------|
| ASIC lodgement fee              | \$3,206              | -        | \$3,206                    |
| ASX quotation fee               | \$12,795             | \$1,279  | \$14,074                   |
| Prospectus preparation expenses | \$15,000             | \$1,500  | \$16,500                   |
| Lead Manager fees               | \$75,275             | \$7,528  | \$82,803                   |
| Total                           | \$106,276            | \$10,307 | \$116,583                  |

#### 8.12 Interests of experts and advisers

Other than as disclosed in this Prospectus:

- (a) all other persons named in this Prospectus as performing a function in a professional, advisory or other capacity in connection with the preparation or distribution of this prospectus do not have, and have not had in the two (2) years before the Prospectus Date, any interest in:
  - (i) the formation or promotion of the Company;
  - (ii) property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company in connection with its formation or promotion of the Offer; or
  - (iii) the Offer; and
- (b) amounts have not been paid nor agreed to be paid (in cash or Shares or otherwise) and no other benefit has been given or agreed to be given to any of those persons for services provided by those persons in connection with the formation or promotion of the Company or the Offers, except as disclosed in this Prospectus and as follows:
  - (i) Moray & Agnew Lawyers has acted as the Australian solicitors to the Company in relation to the Offers. The Company estimates that it will pay Moray & Agnew Lawyers approximately \$15,000 (excluding GST and disbursements) for services provided in connection with the Offers; and
  - (ii) Automic Registry Services conducts the Company's share registry functions and will provide administrative services in respect to the proposed Applications pursuant to this Prospectus. Automic Registry Services will be paid for these services on standard industry terms and conditions.
  - (iii) Sanlam Private Wealth Pty Ltd has been engaged by the Company to act as Lead Manager to the Capital Raising pursuant to the terms of a mandate dated 26 September 2023. Refer to Section 4.2 for further details.

#### 8.13 Consents

Moray & Agnew Lawyers has given and has not, before the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consents to be named in this Prospectus as the Company's solicitors in the form and context in which it is named.

Moray & Agnew Lawyers:

- (a) did not authorise or cause the issue of this Prospectus;
- (b) does not make, or purport to make any statement in this Prospectus nor is any statement in this Prospectus based on any statement by any of those parties other than as specified in this section; and
- (c) to the maximum extent permitted by law, expressly disclaims any responsibility or liability for any part of this Prospectus other than a reference to its name and a statement contained in this prospectus with consent of that party as specified in this section.

Automic Registry Services has given its written consent to being named as the share registry to the Company. Automic Registry Services has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

The Lead Manager has given its written consent to being named as the Lead Manager to the Company with respect to the Capital Raising. The Lead Manager has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

Each of the Directors has given their written consent to being named in this Prospectus in the context in which they are named and have not withdrawn their consent prior to lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

## 8.14 Electronic prospectus

Pursuant to Regulatory Guide 107 ASIC has exempted compliance with certain provisions of the Corporations Act to allow distribution of an Electronic Prospectus on the basis of a paper Prospectus lodged with ASIC and the issue of Shares and Options in response to an electronic Application Form, subject to compliance with certain provisions. If you have received this Prospectus as an Electronic Prospectus please ensure that you have received the entire Prospectus accompanied by the Application Form. If you have not, please email the Company and the Company will send to you, for free, either a hard copy or a further electronic copy of this Prospectus or both.

The Company reserves the right not to accept an Application Form from a person if it has reason to believe that when that person was given access to the electronic Application Form, it was not provided together with the Electronic Prospectus and any relevant supplementary or replacement prospectus or any of those documents were incomplete or altered.

#### 8.15 Financial forecasts

The Directors have considered the matters set out in ASIC Regulatory Guide 170 and believe that they do not have a reasonable basis to forecast future earnings on the basis that the operations of the Company are inherently uncertain. Accordingly, any forecast or projection information would contain such a broad range of potential outcomes and possibilities that it is not possible to prepare a reliable best estimate forecast or projection.

## 8.16 Clearing House Electronic Sub-Register System (CHESS) and Issuer Sponsorship

The Company currently operates an electronic issuer-sponsored register and an electronic CHESS sub-register. The two sub-registers together will comprise the Company's register of Shares.

The Company will not issue certificates. Applicants who are allotted Offer Securities under this Prospectus will be provided with a transaction confirmation statement which sets out the number of Offer Securities allotted to the Applicant. Applicants who elect to hold Shares and/or Options on the issuer-sponsored sub-register will be provided with a holding statement (similar to a bank account statement) which sets out the number of Shares and/or Options allotted to the Shareholder under this Prospectus. For Applicants who elect to hold their Shares and/or Options on the CHESS sub-register, the Company will issue an advice that sets out the number of the Shares and/or Options allotted to the Applicant under this Prospectus. At the end of the month of allotment, CHESS, acting on behalf of the Company, will provide those Shareholders with a holding statement that confirms the number of Shares and/or Options held and any transactions during that month.

A holding statement (whether issued by CHESS or the Company) will also provide details of the applicable Holder Identification Number in case of a holding on the CHESS sub-register or Reference Number in case of a holding on the issuer-sponsored sub-register. Following distribution of these initial holding statements, a holding statement will also be provided to each Shareholder at the end of any subsequent month during which the balance of that Shareholder's holding of securities in the Company changes.

A Shareholder may request a holding statement at any other time. However, a charge may be imposed by the Share Registry for additional statements.

# 8.17 Privacy Act

If you complete an Application Form, you will be providing personal information to the Company (directly or by the Share Registry). The Company collects, holds and will use that information to assess your application, service your needs as a holder of equity securities in

the Company, facilitate distribution payments and corporate communications to you as a Shareholder and carry out administration.

The information may also be used from time to time and disclosed to persons inspecting the register, bidders for your securities in the context of takeovers, regulatory bodies, including the Australian Taxation Office, authorised securities brokers, print service providers, mail houses and the Share Registry.

You can access, correct and update the personal information that we hold about you. Please contact the Company or the Share Registry if you wish to do so at the relevant contact numbers set out in this Prospectus.

Collection, maintenance and disclosure of certain personal information is governed by legislation including the *Privacy Act 1988* (Cth), the Corporations Act and certain rules such as the ASX Settlement Operating Rules. You should note that if you do not provide the information required on the application for Offer Securities or Convertible Notes, the Company may not be able to accept or process your application.

If you do not provide the information required on the Application Form, the Company may not be able to accept or process the application.

#### 8.18 Taxation

It is the responsibility of all persons to satisfy themselves of the particular taxation treatment that applies to them in relation to the Offers, by consulting their own professional tax advisers. Neither the Company nor any of its Directors or officers accepts any liability or responsibility in respect of the taxation consequences of the matters referred to above.

#### 8.19 Alteration of Terms or Withdrawal of the Offer

The Company reserves the right, at its discretion, to vary, suspend or withdraw the Offers at any time, subject to the Corporations Act, the ASX Listing Rules and any other law or regulation to which the Company is subject. Any variation, suspension or cancellation does not give rise to any liability on the part of, or any action against, the Company or any Director and will be binding on all Shareholders.

#### 8.20 Governing Law

The Offers and the contracts arising due to acceptance by Shareholders of the Offers are governed by the law in force in Victoria, Australia.

#### 8.21 Directors' Statement

The Directors state that they have made all reasonable enquiries and have reasonable grounds to believe that any statements by the Directors in this Prospectus are true and not misleading and that in respect to any other statements made in this prospectus by persons other than Directors, the Directors have made reasonable enquiry and have reasonable grounds to believe that persons making the statement or statements were competent to make such statements, those person have given the consent required by section 716 of the Corporations Act to the issue of this Prospectus and have not withdrawn that consent before lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

This Prospectus is prepared on the basis that:

- (a) certain matters may be reasonably expected to be known to professional advisors of any kind with whom Applicants may reasonably be expected to consult; and
- (b) information is known to Applicants or their professional advisors by virtue of any Acts or laws of the Commonwealth or Australia or any State of Australia.

## 8.22 Information excluded from continuous disclosure notices

There is no information which has been excluded from a continuous disclosure notice in accordance with the Listing Rules, and which is required to be set out in this Prospectus.

# 8.23 Determination by ASIC

ASIC has not made a determination which would prevent the Company from relying on section 713 of the Corporations Act in issuing the Securities under the Cleansing Offer or the Convertible Notes under the Convertible Note Offer.

# 9. Directors' Authorisation

This Prospectus is issued by the Company and its issue has been authorised by a resolution of the Directors.

In accordance with section 720 of the Corporations Act, each Director has consent to the lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC.

Elizabeth Spooner Joint Company Secretary For and on behalf of BPH GLOBAL LTD

12 October 2023

## 10. Definitions

**\$ or A\$** means Australian dollars.

**AEDT** means Australian Eastern Daylight Savings Time.

**Applicant** means a person that applies for the Offer Securities and/or

Convertible Notes under the Offers using an Application Form

pursuant to this Prospectus.

**Application Form** means an application form attached to or accompanying this

Prospectus.

**Application Monies** means monies received by the Company from Applicants with

respect to an Application Form.

**ASIC** means the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

ASX means Australian Stock Exchange Limited ACN 008 624 691 or the

Australian Securities Exchange (as the context requires).

**ASX Listing Rules** means the listing rules of ASX as at the date of this Prospectus.

ASX Settlement Operating Rules means the settlement rules of the securities clearing house which

operates CHESS.

**Board** means the Board of Directors of the Company unless the context

indicates otherwise.

**Business Day** means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday in

Melbourne, Victoria.

Capital Raising means the capital raising being undertaken by the Company

pursuant to the Convertible Note Offer and the Placement as

described at Section 4.1 of this Prospectus.

Cleansing Offer means the Cleansing Offer of the Offer Securities made by this

Prospectus to investors to be identified by the Directors.

Company means BPH Global Ltd (ACN 009 104 330).

**Constitution** means the Constitution of the Company as may be amended from

time to time.

**Convertible Note** means a Convertible Note issued under the Convertible Note Offer.

Convertible Note

Offer

means the Company's offer of up to 800,000 Convertible Notes each with a face value of \$1.00 at a subscription price of \$1.00 per Convertible Note to raise up to A\$800,000 as described at Section 4.1 of this Prospectus to sophisticated and professional investors to

be identified by the Directors.

**Corporations Act** means the *Corporations Act 2001* (Cth).

**Directors** means one or more directors of the Company.

**Group** means the Company and any entities it controls.

**Lead Manager** means Sanlam Private Wealth Pty Ltd as the lead manager

appointed by the Company to lead manage the Capital Raising.

Lead Manager Options means New Options to be issued to the Lead Manager in part consideration for the lead manager services provided in connection

with the Capital Raising as described in Section 4.2 of the

Prospectus.

**New Options** means new unlisted Options to be issued by the Company

exercisable at \$0.004 (0.4 cents) per Option and expiring 11 December 2026. The New Options will be subject to the same terms and conditions as the Offer Options being as stated at section

6.2 of this Prospectus.

November 2023 AGM Means the Annual General Meeting of the Company's members

which is expected to take place on 21 November 2023.

Offers means Cleansing Offer and the Convertible Note Offer.

Offer Closing Date means closing date for the Offers specified at section 0 or such

earlier or later date as the Directors may determine.

Offer Opening Date means opening date for the Offers specified at section 0 or such

earlier or later date as the Directors may determine.

**Offer Options** means the free attaching unlisted options offered on a 1:1 basis

with each Offer Share subscribed for under the Cleansing Offer. Each Offer Option shall be exercisable at \$0.004 (0.4 cents), expire on 11 December 2026 and be subject to the terms and conditions specified in section 6.2 of this Prospectus. The Company intends to

apply for quotation of the Offer Options on ASX.

Offer Period means the period commencing the Offer Opening Date and expiring

on the Offer Closing Date.

Offer Securities means the Offer Shares and the Offer Options under the Cleansing

Offer.

Offer Shares means the ten thousand (10,000) quoted Shares offered to invited

Applicants under the Cleansing Offer described in this Prospectus.

Official List means the list of securities permitted to Official Quotation.

Official Quotation means official quotation by ASX in accordance with the ASX Listing

Rules.

**Option** means an option to acquire Shares in the Company.

**Optionholder** means a holder of Options in the Company.

Placement means the placement of 400,833,333 Shares at an issue price of

A\$0.0015 (0.15 cents) plus 400,833,333 free attaching New Options (on a 1 for 1 entitlement basis) to raise A\$601,250 (before costs) from institutional, professional and sophisticated investors and directors as described at Section 4.1 of this Prospectus.

**Prospectus** means this prospectus dated Tuesday, 12 October 2023 and which

was lodged with ASIC on that date.

**Prospectus Date** means the date of this Prospectus.

**Securities** has the same meaning as that given in the ASX Listing Rules.

**Share** means a fully paid ordinary share in the capital of the Company.

**Share Registry** means Automic Pty Ltd (trading as Automic).

**Shareholder** means a holder of Shares.